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On the grounds of the park are to be found three softball fields,
one baseball field, one soccer field, eight tennis courts, playground
equipment, and a senior citizens area as well as 27 picnic sites, walks,
trails, roadway, and three picnic pavilions.,

The "Woodstock" house stands at the highest point of the park., From
this height can be seen the Delaware and Christina Rivers and their sur-—
rounding marshes. The house is of brick, with a two~-story east wing said
to have been built in 1743, and a two-and~one-half-story wing to the west
built in 1833, The addition of porches (front, side, and rear) and a
Ef%ghenrghéd”during the 1930's are the only modern changes. On the roof
of the newer and taller wing is a "widow's walk" surrounded by a balus-—
trade. Two sheds attached to the eastern wing are old but cannot be
dated. Granite hitching posts and a mounting block stand near the en-—
trance. The inside of the building presents contrast between its 18th
and 19th century sections. The older section has rough-finished walls
and low ceiling., The newer section is more refined, indicating not
only the passage of one hundred years, but also the increased fortunes
of the owners. On the lower floor of the 1743 wing is located the
kitchen/parlor of the original building. A winding staircase leads to
the floor above; and there is a root cellar underneath. A dutch oven
with original hardware and wrought iron door can be found in the fire-—
place of this room.

The hardware in both sections is original. On the westerly side of
the main floor ih the newer section can be found large nine-over-nine
windows. These rooms are distinctive for their imported marble fire—
places and original wood trim and hardware. The larger section features
a side-hall, double~pile plan. The classic stairwell and broad passage~
ways add to the spacious feeling of the interior. The second floor also
contains handsome fireplaces, but with wooden mantels made. The one-half
story above the newer section also contains two rooms which are notable
for their inside shutters. Behind a doorway in the hall is a stairway
leading to the second attic and the "widow's walk,"
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

156 acres of parkland comprise the present-day Banning Park., This is the
last remaining intact plantation property along the Christina River. The
land title can be tracéd back Through records to approximately 1659, when
the Swede Andries Andriessen settled on the north bank of the Christina.
The property changed hands several times until 1687 when John Richardson,

a Quaker merchant from New Castle, purchased the property. Richardson
planned to develop a milling community under the name of Middleburg, or
Middleboro. It is believed that his son, John Richardson, II, lived on

or near the property from about 1704. John Richardson, II, built a new
and larger house further up on the hill at the present site of "Woodstock."
The exact date of this new house is not known; however, we do know he
built an addition in 1743, as he referred to it in his will of 1752, This
addition is thought to be the smaller east wing of the present building.
The older section, built between 1704 and l7h3, was torn down in 1833

when the present main house was bullt.

John Richardson, IT, and his several brothers developed on the northern
bank of the Christina a series of mills, farming properties, and ware-—
houses and docks. John Richardson, IT, passed on the property to John
Richardson, IV, his grandson. Since John Richardson, IV, left no will,
the property went to Ann, daughter of John, IT. She marrled Dr,. Henry
Latimer in 1789. Dr. Latimer was an active participant in the Revolution
and a central figure in early Delaware politics. The Latimers were often
guests of Presidents Adams and Jefferson, and "Woodstock" was the center
of society and influence along the Christina. The home and farm were
passed on intact through the Latimer family to James Latimer Banning.
Previous to his acuiring the property, "Woodstock'" had remained vacant
for some time., In 1929 Mr. Bamning and his wife, Jane E, Gray Banning,
set about restoring it.

Tradition states that one of Delaware's most famous ghosts still lives
in "Woodstock,'" haunting on the full moon and leaving signs of his tragic
death at the foot of the stairs.




Barly Architecture of Delaware by George Fletcher Bennett
Historic Houses and Buildings of Delaware by H;‘Eberlien and G. Hubbard

Delaware's Forgotten River by C.A.Awesléger

Richardson's of De]awaré by C.A. Weslager.
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REGISTER VERIFICATI

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been

" evaluated according to the criteria dnd procedures set
forth by the National Park Service.
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I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.
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